
 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/18/2014 
 

   
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 18, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 
(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 

later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)      Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)       Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 
 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Minutes: 
 

• August 19, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 
• September 2, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 
• September 11, 2014 Tentative Millage/Budget Town Council Meeting 

 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/18/2014 
 

 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS - NONE  
 
 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS  - NONE 
 
 
(Clerk Note:  Resolutions have been moved to Item Number 7. on the Agenda in order to 
accompany the adoption of Ordinance No’s. 2014-06 and 2014-07 concerning the Public 
Hearing on the Day Property.) 
 

 
6. ORDINANCES  
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06: PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND AND FINAL 
READING (Day Property Comprehensive Land Use Change)  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AMENDMENT 14-2(SS) TO THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CONCERNING A SMALL-SCALE 
LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE OWNERS OF THE 
PROPERTY, WILLIE H. AND FRANKIE J. DAY TO CHANGE THE DESIGNATION OF 
THE SUBJECT USE OF LAND FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (1 DU PER 5 ACRES) TO 
COMMERCIAL LOW TO ACCOMMODATE THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
MAXIMUM OF 9.3 ACRES OF COMMERCIAL USES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-07: QUASI-JUDICIAL/PUBLIC HEARING/ 

SECOND AND FINAL READING  (Day Property – Rezoning) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AMENDMENT REZ 14-02 TO THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, CONDERNING A 
REZONING APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY, WILLIE 
H. AND FRANKIE J. DAY TO CHANGE THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY FROM AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) TO COMMERCIAL LOW (CL) 
TO ACCOMMODATE THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF A MAXIMUM OF 9.3 ACRES 
OF COMMERCIAL USES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE 

2 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/18/2014 
 

BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING FOR AMENDM,ENT TO THE ZONING MAP TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
7. RESOLUTIONS  

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-18:  (Accepting Restrictive Covenants for Day 

Property) 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RESTRICTIVE COVENANT FROM WILLIAM 
AND FRANKIE DAY RELATING TO THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE 
LAND USE AMENDMENT FOR COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ON THEIR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE 
BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND 
TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE ALL STEPS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE 
INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
b. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19:   (Budget Amendment Fiscal Year 2013-2014) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE TOWN’S 
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2013 AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

 EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT:  Updates on various activities and issues 

concerning the Town. 
 
b. Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) Monthly Report:  October 2014 
 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS  
 
a. Consideration for Acquisition of Central Palm Beach County Chamber of 

Commerce Building. 
  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS – NONE 

 

3 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/18/2014 
 

 
 

11. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney 
 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for December 2, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

August 19, 2014 - Regular Town Council Meeting 

September 2, 2014 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

September 11, 2014 – Tentative Millage/Budget Town Council 
Meeting 

5 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 1 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, August 19, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 

Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.  In attendance were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang and Jim Rockett.  
Also in attendance were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Town 
Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple.  
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion was approved 5/0. 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  

  
a. Minutes for Approval:  July 1, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 

 
b. Consideration for approval of the Criminal Justice Commission (CJC) allocation of Fiscal 

year 2015 (Federal Fiscal Year 2014) Justice Assistant Grant (JAG) funds.  The total 
allocation for Fiscal year 2015 to Palm Beach County is $341,227. 

 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 

6 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 2 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

Town Manager Kutney withdrew 2.b.  
 

Motion:  Councilman Rockett revised his motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 
amended.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 

 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to accept a receive and file document form the 
Inspector General’s Office presented by Dennis Lipp, 13402 North Road.  Councilman 
Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept a receive and file document from 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the 
motion passed 5/0. 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, spoke about an article written about him in the Town Crier 
Newspaper.  He was not happy about the comments. 
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, responded to the comments made by Keith Harris.  
  
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Review of the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Capital Improvement Fund, Transportation 
Fund, Fund Balance.  

 
Bill Underwood, Underwood Management Services Inc., reviewed, and made comments on the 
summary pages of the Budget for Fiscal year 2014/2015.  He then proceeded to review the 
remainder of the Budget line items with the Town Council. 
 
Council discussed not giving so much money to the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
(LGWCD), roads that come over to the Town should reflect on the budget, money for canal 
maintenance, the District being independent and paying their own bills, keeping assessments 
down, and keeping the gas tax money if the Town is going to incur the cost of the roads.  An 
Interlocal agreement was also discussed. 
 
Bill Underwood asked, concerning the Tentative Budget, whether Council wanted to distribute 
the total funds in accordance with the percentage of lane miles now with the Town, or use the 
$.06 gas tax revenue money. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion for the Town to use the $.06 gas tax revenue 
money.   Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Discussion. 
 
Members of the audience expressed their opinions on the various Budget items. 
 

7 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 3 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

Council responded with their input.  
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Rockett casting the dissenting vote. 
 
Bill Underwood will come back with the Budget adjustment.  He continued to review the 
Budget. 
 
Council discussed transferring funds from the Capital Improvement Funds (CIP), and related 
Budget items.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion that the Town balance the Capital Budget 
based on what the Town has spent and what the Town now has designated; and then come 
back with a new set of numbers to put in the Capital Improvement Program with a five (5) 
year horizon, and only have funds is the Capital Funds that are identified, and have them 
balanced with their source.  Also, each year revisit the funds and adjust accordingly, if 
needed, otherwise leave the funds available only for designated projects.  Councilman 
Goltzené seconded the motion. 
 
Council continued discussion with Mr. Underwood concerning Budget items. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to consolidate projects into two (2) 
categories, road projects and trail projects, and balance out what we intend to spend.  The 
Town can always move the funds.  Councilman Liang seconded for discussion. 
 
Bill Underwood clarified that the Town would be using the Transportation Gas Tax money as the 
first source of funding, and he will not be changing the source of funding for next year.  It was 
confirmed. 
 
Council continued Budget discussion on individual line items and consolidation. 
 
Mayor Browning stated he believes all of the Town roads the Town collects gas tax money on, 
and that cross any Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) canal, that those 
culvert are the Town’s responsibility.   The Town will have to address this issue in the future. 
 
Motion Modified:  Councilman Goltzené modified his motion to establish a category for 
trails, a category for roads, and a category for road acquisition, (culverts included).  
Councilman Liang amended his second.  
 
Council discussed additional items to be included in the motion. 
 
Bill Underwood reiterated the five (5) line items to be included in the motion will be road 
projects, trail projects, drainage, Loxahatchee Groves’ purchase of roads, and Okeechobee 
Boulevard and D Road traffic light. 
 

8 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 4 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

Councilman Goltzené and Councilman Liang were good with the revised list for their 
motion.   
 
Jo Siciliano, 1530 B Road, has a suggestion, which may be a solution; that is to set up a 
monitoring system to see which roads are the most traveled. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion that in the Capital Improvement Fund under 
roads, trails and drainage, the Town set aside $400,000 additionally for each.  Councilman 
Goltzené seconded the motion.   
 
Bill Underwood noted that in the Budget, he will appropriate $90,374 for roads surveying, 
$120,000 for horse trails, and $28,934 for Loxahatchee Groves.  The million dollars will go back 
to the General Fund for the traffic light. 
 
Upon vote, (this reversed the prior motion – and will be taking funds out of the General 
Fund and putting it into the above line items) the motion failed 3/2 with Mayor Browning, 
Councilman Liang, and Councilman Rockett dissenting.  
 
Council deliberated on how to spend the Town funds.   
 
Bill Underwood recommended to Council that they need to identify the project, get the numbers, 
appropriate the numbers to the best of their ability that Council knows they are going to spend.  
He also recommended that Council not take an action to appropriate the money toward drainage 
until the cost has been determined.  Decide yes or no to leave the million dollars in the Capital 
Improvement Fund. 
 
Bill Underwood recommended Council to consider identifying the project and how much they 
would like to spend. Leave some fund balance. Yes or not to leave million in the Capital 
Improvement Program. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to appropriate $25,000 for drainage into the 
Capital Improvement Program.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the 
motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a brief break, 8:57 p.m. to 9:01 p.m. 
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS - NONE 
 

 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES – NONE 

9 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 5 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

No update  
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission Office of the General Counsel, re 
Local Ordinances and the Regulations of Captive Wildlife.  
 

Town Manager Kutney provided background and noted Jim Fleischmann’s recommendations, 
and Town Attorney Cirullo explained the sections which would be taken out.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to take Mr. Fleischmann’s recommendation 
and remove the sections mentioned with the exception of  Number Seven (#7) 87-015.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Discussion. 
 
Council discussed changes with Mr. Fleischmann. 
 
Councilman Rockett requested a footnote to reference Florida Fish and Wildlife in the sections 
where changes are made.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo clarified that along with the exception of 87-015 in Councilman 
Goltzené’s motion, Section 40-015 will not be removed as well. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Administrative Policy 1-14:   Reporting Policy to The Palm Beach County Inspector 
General    
 

Town Manager Kutney explained Town Staff wrote the policy which is on the Agenda this 
evening. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Administrative Policy 1-14:  
Reporting Policy to the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  Councilman Liang seconded 
the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 

11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, was sad to hear adverse comments on his religious beliefs.  

10 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 6 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

 
Mayor Browning read into the record, Bill Louda’s (1300 E Road) comments concerning his 
opposition to Minto West.  
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, in his comments to Keith Harris, had referred to State Statutes not 
biblical references.  
 

b. Town Attorney   
 

No relevant comments, but did say “Go Gators”. 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Goltzené stated the discussion tonight was productive, and commented that people 
need to stay on point.  He thanked those who stayed. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel wanted a consensus from Council for hedging, and to allow Staff and Legal 
to draft an agreement without going out for a Request for Proposal (RFP).  
 
Town Manager Kutney and Town Attorney Cirullo will look at the contract, start a bid process 
now, and use the $40,000 that will be budgeted for hedging. 
 
Council discussed the hedging issue with Town Manager Kutney and Town Attorney Cirullo.  
 
Mayor Browning asked Staff to look at options.  It was the consensus of Council for Staff to 
proceed.  
 
Councilman Liang thanked everyone for staying, and he appreciates everyone’s comments. 
 
Councilman Rockett asked Town Manager Kutney to explain the update on 6th Court North. 
 
Town Manager Kutney met at 6th Court North with Steve Yohe, Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District Director, and Frank Schiola, Public Works, to determine the proposed needs for 
the culvert project. 
 
Councilman Rockett thanked Town Manager Kutney for his report; and everyone who was here 
this evening. 
 
Town Manager Kutney, in response to a question from Mayor Browning concerning $100,000 
for road surveying, reported that during the Intergovernmental Coordination Committee (IGC) 
Meeting on Friday, August 22, 2014, he will discuss the Interlocal Agreement and bring these 
matters forward.  He did say that Steve Yohe, Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
Supervisor, reported the Town has to do maintenance mapping before the District can turn the 
roads over to the Town. 
 

11 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 7 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo noted the Special Act of the Legislature amended the Loxahatchee 
Groves Water Control District’s Charter for the District to conduct the mapping process. 
 
Mayor Browning read the State of Florida and the Federal Government has allotted money to 
connect trails from coast to coast.  He thanked everyone for coming. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned 
the meeting at 9:27 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the November 18, 2014 Town Council Meeting. 

12 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 1 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, September 2, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.   In attendance were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, and Jim Rockett.  Councilman 
Ryan Liang was not present at this time.  Also in attendance were Town Manager Mark Kutney, 
Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple.  Jim Fleischmann Town 
Planning Consultant was in the audience. 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Town Manager Kutney introduced Addendum #1 to be placed under 4.a. Presentations: Randy 
Wertepny, Sr. Project Manager, Keshavarz and Associates would also provide information on 
the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). Also, Addendum #2 to be placed 
under 8. Administrative Update: Town Manager Kutney will provide a status update on the 
Chamber of Commerce Building. 
 
Motion:  Council Member Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda as modified.  
Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

13 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 2 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

 
Motion:  Council Member Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vice- 
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 4/0. 

  
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, commented on recent gas map discussion, and assessment rates.  He 
encouraged the Town to take control for all roads and trails. 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Randy Wertepny, P.E., Sr. Project Manager, Keshavarz & Associates, Inc., to provide 
tutorial on the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Map process. 

 
Town Manager Kutney provided an overview and mentioned dates and locations of meetings for 
Flood Map review and discussion. 
 
Randy Wertepny provided updated information on the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM).  New flood elevations have been established, and 
Mr. Wertepny listed all upcoming meeting dates for residents, and who will be in attendance. He 
explained what is required for application, and what is required for any revisions that might need 
to be made through the Letter of Map Revision (LOMR). 
 
Council discussed with Mr. Wertepny the various flood plains and discharge of water.  It was 
mentioned that the Town could make application as a whole to challenge the flood map 
designations.  Weir gates for flood control were also discussed, as well as flood insurance and 
flood elevations. 
 
Members of the audiences expressed their comments and concerns. 
 
Addendum #1 Item: Randy Wertepny also spoke on the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES).  
 
Town Manager Kutney explained another government requirement.  The Town needs to get 
involved in this program, or apply for a waiver.   
 
Randy Wertepny explained the NPDES program which started about five (5) years ago. There 
are two (2) NPDES programs; one if you are a new developer and the other for municipalities.   
The Town could apply for a waiver for exemption if classified as an Urban Designated 
Community (UDC) based upon the 2010 census.  He mentioned others, and suggested the Town 
adopt some Best Management Practices. 
 

14 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 3 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Virginia Standish, Chair of the Financial Audit and Advisory Committee (FAAC) to 
provide a status report on the proposed Road Improvement Policy and the draft 
Purchasing Ordinance.  (No Backup Material) 
 

Virginia Standish provided a bank account balance and noted Financials are not available this 
evening. Several items were reviewed. Transfer of $40,000 from the Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District (LGWCD) had been accomplished, all documents will be included.  The FAAC 
Board is reviewing a Purchasing Policy and once completed, will be presented to Council.  Cost 
sharing was addressed concerning acreage.  Ms. Standish also addressed the fraudulent checks 
matter, and stated it was resolved.   
 
Mayor Browning called for a break at 8:14.  Residents reviewed their properties on the 
electronic Geographic Information System (GIS) map provided by Mr. Wertepny. 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS – NONE 
 
 
7.  ORDINANCES - NONE 
 

 
  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
Addendum Item: Status Update on Chamber of Commerce Building 

Town Manager Kutney provided an update and mentioned On August 5th Council had directed 
staff to work with the Central Palm Beach Chamber of Commerce for options to purchase and/or 
lease the Chamber of Commerce building located at 13901 Southern Boulevard, Loxahatchee 
Groves, Florida.  He met with the Chamber CEO Wayne Burns on August 20, 2014, and this 
included a conference call with Town Attorney Mike Cirullo.  Correspondence has been going 
back and forth and on August 2nd there was an additional conference call between Town 
Manager Kutney, Wayne Burns, Town Attorney Cirullo and his partner Attorney D. J. Doody, 
who specializes in real estate.  The Chamber offered three options; an outright sale, a lease with 
option to buy, and a straight lease.  Many options were discussed, and it was recommended that 
the Town would need a ninety (90) day period for due diligence research and for the Town and 
the Chamber to work together.   During that time the Town would have to get its own appraisal, 
a survey, and an inspection of the property, and any additional information needed to make a 
decision. There are a number of ways to structure whichever option Council choses to go with.  
According to the Town Attorneys, the Town’s Charter allows a lease with an option to buy, but 
the limit is thirty-six (36) months; otherwise the Town would have to go to a referendum.   Town 
Manager Kutney suggested a proposal could be brought before Council prior to a Shade meeting 

15 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 4 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

that is tentatively scheduled for September 16, 2014.  He felt it would be in the best interest of 
both parties to proceed and move forward with some sort of agreement prior to the November, 
Palm Beach County Commission elections. 
 
Council Member Goltzené expressed his opinion concerning the deficiencies of the current Town 
Offices location and that they are not conducive to a municipal facility.  He felt this proposal was 
contrary to the original idea of the Town, and he was not sure buying/leasing property was the 
best idea for spending the Town’s money.  He also did not like buying/leasing a property that is 
sitting on someone else’s land, and he felt a long term lease was a better idea.  
 
Mayor Browning noted this was really a preliminary phase.  The Chamber of Commerce made 
an offer and we are just thinking about the idea. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo, in response to a question by Mayor Browning concerning the ninety (90) 
day due diligence, the reason the agreement should be done before November (Elections) is that 
the proposal will need to go before the Palm Beach County Commissioners for approval, as well 
as, a lease mortgage from a bank for the change of occupancy.  The agreement that would be 
brought back to Council would include a ninety (90) day inspection period which would include 
all necessary approvals, and inspection of the building. The due diligence would have to be 
completed in order to make the presentation.  Town Attorney Cirullo wanted to make sure there 
was enough direction from Council in order to bring back a complete document, which would be 
about ten (10) days in order to have it ready for the Palm Beach County Commission review. 
 
Mayor Browning noted for the record that Council Member Liang arrived at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Council Member Goltzené would rather see the traffic light in place before the Town asks for 
anything else. 
 
Council Member Rockett would like Staff to move forward, and continue with the information 
gathering. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated the Council did not necessarily need to pick a “branch” or type of 
proposal at this time but give Staff direction to prepare something that would help with a 
decision. 
 
Mayor Browning referred to a discussion he had with Town Manger Kutney. Mayor Browning’s 
thoughts were to build a four thousand (4,000) square foot two story concrete building on the 
LGWCD site at $75 per square foot, and back it up to Boonies Restaurant and Bar.  The cost 
would be approximately $300,000 which could be split between the Town and the Loxahatchee 
Groves Water Control District (LGWCD).  If the Town Hall offices were moved to the Chamber 

16 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 5 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

building, he expressed concern that the municipality would then be housed in two separate 
locations.  The Chamber location is a beautiful facility, but practically he does not know how we 
can make the move now.   
 
Councilman Goltzené suggested going with a straight lease, and make a more permanent 
decision in the future.  
 
Mayor Browning stated if the Town could lease for what we are spending now then it is a no 
brainer.  The cost is a factor, what will it cost to build a new structure. 
 
Council Member Rockett stated the Town could lease with an option to buy; but that does not 
mean the Town has to buy. Take the lease then get a cost of building a structure.  We also had 
subleasing considerations, and the Town could look into those options.  He would like to proceed 
with the lease and option to buy. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel agreed with Council Member Rockett on a lease with option to buy.  He sees 
a lot of potential for the Chamber building; it is only five (5) years old.  Referencing the location 
of the District, he noted that most of the municipalities’ shops are not where the Town Center is 
located.  He wanted to know how long we had to walk through a pig sty, when it is raining, to 
come to a meeting, and have people standing outside during a major discussion who cannot even 
hear what is going on.  The Town has problems they are not solving.  With all the entities who 
are meeting at different locations, the Chamber building is already equipped.  The $75 or even 
$85 per square foot does not include everything that has to be done on the inside; i.e. electric etc.  
The only route that he would indorse is the lease with an option to buy.  Thirty-six (36) months 
will give the residents of Loxahatchee Groves an idea of what they would like.  Loxahatchee 
Groves needs a good Town Center.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel asked Attorney Cirullo if we leased with 
an option to buy would the Town still have inspections. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that once the lease was up and it was time to exercise the option to 
buy the Town would have to do their due diligence at that time.  The only inspections needed 
would be those required for the lease. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel felt there is so much that can be done with the Town Center (Chamber of 
Commerce building) that the residents could enjoy.  If the Town could lease with an option to 
buy without the extra expenses while we decide what is best for the people, then we take that 
route.  There is so much we can do with that Town Center (Chamber building). Our volunteer 
committees have a decent place to go.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel asked Mr. Burns if the Town could 
sublease rooms out to the Chamber, if the Town went with a lease with an option to buy. 
  

17 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 6 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

Mr. Burns stated it could be possible for a sublease situation; however, from a security 
prospective it would be better for the Town to have the whole building. 
 
In answer to a question from Vice-Mayor Jarriel, Town Attorney Cirullo stated that, assuming 
the Town would be leasing the whole building, the Town would still be governed by whatever 
agreement is already in place from Palm Beach County. We would be subleasing from the 
Chamber who is leasing the land from Palm Beach County.  He is not sure the Chamber would 
be released from that agreement it would be a part of the approval process.  That would apply as 
well for a sub sublease as well. 
 
Mr. Burns felt like it would be simpler to go to Palm Beach County with an agreement in hand, 
such as a lease with an option to buy from Loxahatchee Groves.  It would be a structural change.  
Once the Town occupied the building, negotiations could be conducted along the way until a 
final decision could be made.  The Chamber would support a lease with the option to buy, even 
though it would not be their first preference. 
 
Mr. Burns replying to a question from Vice-Mayor Jarriel stated the appraisal of the building was 
$630,000. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that at that price the Town would have to get two (2) appraisals, 
per Florida Statutes. 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel reference the volunteer hours spent.  
 
Mr. Burns based the $630,000 amount on the building structure, not having anything to do with 
the land itself for obvious reasons.  If all other amenities are added in the cost would be 
considerably more, more like $85.00 per square foot. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel noted that the Town pays for storage due to security reasons.  He had 
acquired all the current costs from Mrs. Underwood for rent etc., and what the Town pays per 
year with all the hassles.  He then asked Mr. Burns if the Town went with a lease with an option 
to buy, had Mr. Burns come up with any numbers for cost per month. 
 
Mr. Burns had not come up with any numbers, as yet.  If that is the option of the Council he can 
take that back to the Board, and return with something to discuss with Mark.  
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to direct staff to talk with the Chamber of 
Commerce in order to find out everything the Town needs to know, especially what it 
would cost the Town monthly for a lease with an option to buy; therefore, the Town has 

18 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 7 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

thirty-six (36) months to decide so we do not have to rush.   Council Member Liang 
seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo questioned the lease with the option to buy and compared it to a lease 
purchase.   After clarification from Vice-Mayor Jarriel the Town would lease with it written in 
the contract that the monies already spent would apply to the purchase price.  
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel stated to leave the lease term up to staff, the longer the better.  Council 
member Liang was in agreement but added that when the Chamber, returns with a hard number 
then it can be “bounced” to the Finance Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) to have them 
look at it, they can present it to Council, and Council can go from there. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel agreed to definitely run it through the Finance Advisory and Audit 
Committee (FAAC). 
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road and FAAC Member, thought a workshop would be good.  
The building is a government building and no other tenants should be housed.  She had other 
comments concerning the proposal.  If a workshop is scheduled, staff better tell us what the Palm 
Beach County has said.  Don’t go negotiating a lease without talking to Palm Beach County 
because the Town may be in for a big surprise.  She would not like to come to a Town Hall with 
large equipment close by.  She also wanted to know who paid for what, between the State and 
the Landowners. 
 
Mr. Burns responded to Ms. Standish’s comments. 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, there are a lot of financial considerations to make.  A workshop is a 
good idea.  He appreciates Town Management investigating this matter, it needs a thorough 
review. 
 
Sharon Browning, 3056 D Road, compared the Chamber of Commerce building with the 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) Meeting Room.  She likes the Town the 
way it is. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Council Member Goltzené casting the dissenting 
vote. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo if Council wants the FAAC to review this matter, a Special Meeting will 
have to be called. 
 

19 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 8 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

Mayor Browning stated at this time, the Town is discussing leasing.  A Special Workshop is not 
needed for that.   
 
Councilman Goltzené noted other places might be available. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo will try to have the information for the Town Council Meeting scheduled 
in three (3) weeks, on September 23, 2014, or as soon as possible. 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS - NONE 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, reference the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES), and the work on Bryan Road, Compton Road and Marcella Boulevard.  There are 
many other roads in the Town that have drainage issues. 
 
Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Boulevard, mentioned that Loxahatchee Groves Boy Scout Troop 
199, is working on their merit badges and he would like them to attend a Town Council Meeting.  
There are approximately thirty (30) Scouts.  
 
It was the consensus of the Town Council to invite the troop to come. 
 
Mayor Browning spoke of bringing, and honoring, Quasi Modo to the October 4, 2014 Town 
Council Meeting.  Quasi Modo won 2nd place in the World’s Ugliest Dog Contest, and is a 
resident of Loxahatchee Groves. 

  
b. Town Attorney   

• Request for Town Council to schedule a closed door meeting to discuss 
litigation in Day v. Town of Loxahatchee Groves, 15th Judicial Circuit, Palm 
Beach County, Florida, Case No. 502012CA014543MB. 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo requested September 16, 2014, any time after 2:00 p.m. 
 
It was the consensus of the Town Council to hold the closed door meeting at 7:00 p.m. on 
September 16, 2014, in the Town Hall offices. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo also stated “Go Gators” with qualifications. 

 
c. Town Council Members 

20 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 2, 2014 

   Page 9 of 9  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/02/2014 
 

 
Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming.      
 
Councilman Liang apologized for being late, and also thanked everyone for coming. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel, thanked everyone for coming, and wished them to be safe going home. 
 
Councilman Goltzené also thanked everyone for coming, and will see everyone next week. 
 
Mayor Browning stated “to you a good night”. 
 
Council Liang stated that he would be appointing his representative to the Finance Advisory and 
Audit Committee (FAAC).  Her name is Anita Kane. 
 
It was the consensus of the Town Council to accept Councilman Liang’s appointment of 
Anita Kane to the FAAC Board. 
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the 
meeting at 9:26. p.m. 
 

 
 
 

 
__________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the November 18, 2014 Town Council Meeting. 
 

 

21 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 1 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Thursday, September 11, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 
(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 

later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT / TENTATIVE MILLAGE / TENTATIVE BUDGET 
 FY 2014/2015 

 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 

Only three (3) Members of Council were present, and Town Attorney Cirullo pointed out since 
there was neither Mayor nor Vice-Mayor the remaining members would have to appoint a Chair 
Pro Tem. 
 
Councilman Rockett appointed Councilman Ryan Liang as Chair Pro Tem. 
 
Councilman Liang called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  In attendance were Councilman 
Liang as Chair Pro Tem, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, and Jim Rockett.  Mayor David Browning 
and Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel were not present at this time.  Also in attendance were Town 
Manager Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Bill Underwood of Underwood 
Management Services, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 

22 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 2 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Chair Pro Tem Councilman Liang 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented.  
Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 3/0. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated for the record that all votes have to be unanimous in order to take 
action. 
 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA - NONE 

 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No Public comments. 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS - NONE 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS  
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09:  PUBLIC HEARING / SOLID WASTE 
ASSESSMENT FY 2014/2015 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA; 
APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT RATE FOR RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015; IMPOSING A RESIDENTIAL 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ASSESSMENT AGAINST ASSESSED PROPERTY 
LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING ON OCTOBER 1, 2014; APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo provided background and read the title of Resolution No. 2014-09. 
 
Bill Underwood, Underwood Management Services, noted this was a perfunctory resolution like 
the Town passed last year.  The rate for the Waste Collection Assessed Costs for the 2014-2015 
Fiscal year, commencing October 1, 2014, will be $344.10 annually per dwelling unit, as was the 

23 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 3 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

prior year.  The Town currently has 1,256 units being assessed, and the cost will be $432,190 for 
removal of residential solid waste. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-09. 
 
Councilman Goltzené stated the Council needed to consider the letter from Catherine Roze first. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo summarize that Ms. Roze, 1044 D Road, was being assessed solid waste 
fees for two units on this piece of property, one of which is a Recreational Vehicle (R/V) which 
she states in now used for storage. She may be responsible for some fees, but the assessments 
would be imposed for cost of services going forward. 
 
Catherine Roze, 1044 D Road, provided the Council with a brief history of her property, and 
noted the trailer was now storage, so she felt she should only be assessed for one unit on her 
property. 
 
Council discussed the assessment for Ms. Roze with Town Attorney Cirullo and Mr. 
Underwood. 
 
Mr. Underwood referenced page eight (8) of sixty-two (62) paragraph “c” to identify the total 
assessed cost which was $432,190 would now be $431,846.  
 
Perla Underwood, Underwood Management Services, explained how, and when, the solid waste 
fees are assessed.  
 
No comments from the audience. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-09 with the 
amendment to the Service Assessment Revenue to now be $431,845.50, and to reduce the 
assessment on this property to one (1) unit from two (2) units.  Councilman Goltzené 
seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 3/0. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo requested that when making motions for the tentative millage rate and 
budget that the motion include the date of the 2nd and Final Public Hearing which will be 
Tuesday, September 23, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. at the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
(LGWCD) location. 
 

 
b. RESOLUTION NO, 2014-10:  FIRST PUBLIC HEARING / TENTATIVE 

MILLAGE FY 2014/2015 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA,  
ESTABLISHING   THE  TENTATIVE   MILLAGE  FOR  THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES, FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO THE BUDGET SUMMARY 
FOR THE  FISCAL  YEAR 2014-2015, IN ACCORDANCE WITH  CHAPTER 200, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, AS AMENDED; SETTING  FORTH  THE  DATE, TIME  AND 

24 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 4 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

PLACE  FOR THE   SECOND   AND  FINAL  PUBLIC   HEARING   TO   ADOPT  THE 
TOWN'S  MILLAGE  RATE  FOR  THE  FISCAL  YEAR 2014-2015 AND DIRECTING 
PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Bill Underwood explained the procedures for adopting the final millage rate and the final 
budget and requested how Council would like to proceed.  He explained excess funding, the 
rolled back rate is 1.0954, and the millage is 1.5 which is a 36.94% increase over the prior year. 
 
Council discussed budget items with Mr. Underwood, and whether to approve the 1.2 or 1.5 
millage rate. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to set the tentative millage rate at 1.2 mills.  
Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion for discussion. 
 
Councilman Goltzene felt the full Council should be present to vote on this matter, and that 
Council should vote on 1.5 mills tonight and move forward.  He would encourage Councilman 
Rockett to change his motion for this meeting, so that the subject could be discussed further 
with a full Council.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated the Council could not go higher on the millage rate that what was 
voted on this evening; however, they can go lower. 
 
Public comments were opened at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, requested Council vote for the 1.5 mills this evening so that a full 
Council will have the opportunity to decide at the next meeting. 
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road, speaking as a resident first, then as Chair of the Finance 
Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC), she would like the millage to be 1.2 but also feels that 
a full Council should be present for such a serious decision.  
 
Public Comments closed at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Upon roll call vote the motion failed 1/2 with Councilmen Liang and Goltzené casting 
dissenting votes.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzene made a motion to approve the millage rate of 1.5 mills.  
Chair Liang passed the gavel to Councilman Rockett and seconded the motion.  Upon roll 
call vote, even though the vote passed 2/1 (with Councilman Rockett casting the dissenting 
vote) the vote failed for lack of a unanimous vote. 
 
Council seriously deliberated on the millage rates, and were told they needed to make a decision 
at this meeting in order to move forward to the final millage at the next Town Council Meeting. 
There was a brief break from 7:55-7:58 p.m. as Councilman Goltzené left the dais. 
 

25 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 5 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

A formal break followed from 7:59-8:05 p.m. 
 
Members of the audience expressed their opinions on the matter.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to amend his motion, contrary to his 
principals, to allow for full Council vote for procedural purposes.  He will change his 
motion to approve the tentative millage to 1.5 mills solely for the purposes of moving the 
vote on the millage rate for vote of full Council.  Notwithstanding, Councilman Rockett is 
against 1.5 mills and will vote for 1.2 mills at the next meeting. Filling in the blanks the 
motion will be for 1.5 mills which is 36.9% greater than the roll back rate at 1.0954.  The 
next meeting will be on September 23, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. at the Loxahatchee Groves 
Water Control District (LGWCD) location to discuss, in final, the millage and budget.  
Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote the motion passed 3/0. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Resolution No. 2014-09. 
 

c. RESOLUTION NO, 2014-11:  FIRST PUBLIC HEARING / TENTATIVE 
 BUDGET FY 2014/2015 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA,  ADOPTING A TENTATIVE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; SETTING 
FORTH THE DATE, TIME  AND  PLACE  FOR  THE  SECOND  PUBLIC HEARING  
FOR THE  ADOPTION  OF  THE  TOWN'S  BUDGET  FOR THE  FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014, AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Resolution No. 2014-10.   
 
Mr. Underwood further explained budget items in Revenues and Expenditures. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to adopt the Tentative Budget as presented.  
Councilman Rockett seconded the motion.   
 
Councilman Goltzené left the dais at 8:21, and there could not be a vote until all Council 
Members were present.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo suggested a recess. 
 
Councilman Rockett seconded the motion to adopt Resolution No. 2014-11, with the 
contingency that Staff has prepared options for Council to show a Budget with the 1.2 
millage rate. 
 
Council discussed various aspects of the budget and millage rate. 

26 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 6 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

 
Councilman Goltzene withdrew his motion, and at this time there is not motion on the 
table. 
 
Chair Liang passed the gavel to Councilman Rockett and wanted to make made a motion that 
with direction to Council to suggest any and all Budget cuts to be discussed at the next meeting. 
 
During discussion, Mayor Browning arrived at 8:40 p.m. and took over meeting. 
 
There was not a motion on the table to take action on. 
 
Councilman Goltzené requested a five (5) minute break to recap the meeting for Mayor 
Browning. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a break, 8:41-8:45 p.m. 
 
Mayor Browning opened the discussion for Public Comments at 8:41 p.m. 
 
No comments from the public. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2014-11 for the 
Tentative Budget.  Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, the 
motion passed 4/0. 
 
 
 7.  ORDINANCES - NONE 
 

 
  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

Town Manager Kutney had no report this evening. 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS - NONE 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

No further comments. 
 

27 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, September 11, 2014 

   Page 7 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
09/11/2014 
 

 
b. Town Attorney 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo stated “Go Gators”. 
 
c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming.  
 
Councilman Liang also thanked everyone for coming. 
 
Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for coming as well. 
 
Mayor Browning thanked everyone for coming, including himself. 
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned 
the meeting at 8:48 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the November 18, 2014 Town Council Meeting. 

28 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.a. & 6.b.

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-06 – Day Property Comp Plan Change
Ordinance No. 2014-07 -  Day Property Rezoning 

 
 

29 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO.6.a. & 6.b.  

MEETING DATE: 11/18/2014 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, ICMA-CM 

 
SUBJECT:  Ordinances on Second/Final Reading; Public Hearing for Land Use Plan Amendment and 
Quasi-Judicial Second/Final Public Hearing for Rezoning of the Willie H. and Frankie J. Day Property 
(Day Property) 
  

1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Legislative Update:  Town Council Unanimously Approved the Ordinances on first reading, 
11/04/2014; by a vote of 4/0 (Councilman Goltzené was not present at this meeting). 

Problem Statement: A request for a land use and zoning change for the Day Property is needed 
before permits can be issued for construction. 

Problem Solution:  Town Council hold its second public hearing and adopt ordinances to provide 
for the land use and zoning changes.  

As the Council is aware, the Day Property has been under consideration for some time for approval 
of approximately a 9.3 acre parcel at the southwest corner intersection of Okeechobee Blvd, and 
Folsom Road.       

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
    
At the October 23, 2014, Planning and Zoning Committee meeting, the committee heard discussion on the 
application and merits of changing the land use and zoning of the subject parcel.  After considerable 
discussion, the Committee approved unanimously to approve both the land use change from Rural 
Residential to Commercial Low to accommodate future development.   
 
 
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  
  Ordinance No. 2014-06 
Ordinance No. 2014-07 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  The land use and zoning changes will provide increased value to the Town’s ad valorem tax basis. 
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

30 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

1. Open Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2014-06. 
2. Close Public hearing after receiving comments. 
3. Motion to approve ordinance 2014-06 by a super majority vote. 
4. Open Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing on Ordinance 2014-07. 
5. Close Public Hearing after receiving comments. 
6. Motion to approve Ordinance 2014-07 by a super majority vote. 

31 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Loxahatchee Groves Town Council Agenda Item No. 6.a  Report 

Meeting Date:  November  4, 2014/November 18, 2014 

Prepared By:  Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant 

Subject:  Day Property Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA) 14-02 (SS)  

A.  Background/History: 

 Issue Statement:  CPA 14-02 (SS) is an application for an amendment to  the 
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use Map designation of the Day 
property from Rural Residential 5 to Commercial Low.  The property is 9.30 acres in 
size and located at the southwest corner of Okeechobee Boulevard and Folsom Road. 

 Potential Actions:  (1)  Approve CPA  14-02 (SS); (2)  Deny CPA 14-02 (SS); or 
(3)  Approve CPA 14-02 (SS) subject to conditions. 

B.  Current Activity:   
 
CPA 14-02 (SS) and a companion rezoning application (REZ 14-02) have been filed to 
change the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Designations on the 9.30 acre Day 
property to Commercial Low (CL) designations. 
 
The Local  Planning Agency (LPA) recommended approval of the Staff recommendation 
(see below) at its meeting  on October 23, 2014 by a 5 – 0 vote. 

 
C. Attachments: 

 
  Staff Report which contains a detailed review of both CPA 14-02 (SS) and REZ 
14-02.  

 
D. Town Financial Impact: 

 
None.  Review of CPA 14-02 (SS) is funded by the Town’s Cost Recovery system. 
 

E. Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends approval of CPA 14-02 subject to the following conditions: 
 
  1.  The applicant shall record a Deed Restriction which will provide that the Intensity 

of development shall not exceed a floor-area-ratio (F.A.R.) of 0.074 in order to 
accommodate a maximum of 30,000 sq. ft. of commercial low intensity uses; 
provided that this restriction would automatically increase to whatever F.A.R. may be 
subsequently granted by the Town Council to any other Commercial Low designated 
property fronting on Okeechobee Boulevard and lying within the Town limits.  

1 of 2 
 

32 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2. A Conceptual Site Plan reflecting a 0.074 F.A.R. shall be approved as part of the 
initial rezoning process.  Subject to potential future F.A.R. increases permitted by 
Condition A.1, all future development uses, access and intensity shall be consistent 
with the Conceptual Site Plan.   

3.  Any increase in development intensity above a 0.074 F.A.R., as permitted in 
Condition A.1, shall be processed through the Town’s site plan or site plan 
amendment approval process, as appropriate.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 of 2 

33 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



34 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



35 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



36 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



38 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



39 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



44 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Loxahatchee Groves Town Council Agenda Item No. 6.b. Report 

Meeting Date:  November  4, 2014/November 18, 2014 

Prepared By:  Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant 

Subject:  Day Property Rezoning – REZ 2014-02 

A.  Background/History: 

 Issue Statement:  REZ 14-02 is a companion application to CPA 14-02 (SS) for 
an amendment to change the Zoning Map designation of the Day property from 
Agricultural Residential (AR) to Commercial Low (CL).  The property is 9.30 acres in 
size and is located at the southwest corner of Okeechobee Boulevard and Folsom 
Road. 

 Potential Actions:  (1) Approve  REZ 14-02; (2)  Deny REZ 14-02; or (3)  
Approve REZ 14-02 subject to conditions. 

B.  Current Activity:   
 
CPA 14-02 (SS) and a companion rezoning application (REZ 14-02) have been filed to 
change the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Designations on the 9.30 acre Day 
property to Commercial Low (CL) designations.  Approval of REZ 14-02 will make the 
Zoning Map designation consistent with the Future Land Use Map designation of the 
property, provided that CPA 14-02 is first approved by the Town Council  
 
The Local  Planning Agency (LPA) recommended approval of the Staff recommendation 
(see below) at its meeting  on October 23, 2014 by a 5 – 0 vote. 

 
C. Attachments: 

 
Staff Report, which contains a detailed review of both CPA 14-02 (SS) and REZ 

14-02.  
 
D. Town Financial Impact: 

 
None.  Review of REZ 14-02 is funded by the Town’s Cost Recovery system. 
 

E. Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends approval of REZ 14-02 subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. A County Traffic Performance Standards (TPS) review, including a concurrency 
determination, shall be completed at the time of site plan review, when a specific 
plan of development is proposed, in order to establish traffic-based building potential 
and the timing thereof.     

1 of 2 

56 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2.  Building height shall be limited to one story. 
 

3. The Rural Vista Guidelines, as directed by the Town Council, shall be 
incorporated within the design of the development at the time of site plan approval. 

4. Incorporation of on-site connectivity with the Red Barn commercial property to the 
west within the design of the project shall be investigated prior to site plan approval. 

5. Incorporation of a Palm Tran bus shelter within the design of the project shall be 
investigated prior to  site plan approval. 

6. A vegetative survey, including a Slash Pine inventory, shall be completed at the 
time of site plan approval, including identification of a Slash Pine preservation 
program. 

7. A plat pursuant to Article 140 of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code shall 
be filed with the Town. 

8. Prior to submitting a site plan application, the Roadway Equestrian Trails and 
Greenways (RETAG) Advisory Committee shall be consulted regarding the 
feasibility of  incorporating equestrian facilities within the development program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
2 of 2 

 

57 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



61 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



62 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



63 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



64 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



72 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



73 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



74 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



75 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



76 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



77 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a.  

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2014-18  

Restrictive Covenants – Day Property 

 

 

 

 
 

80 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
FLORIDA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-18 

 

{00045405.1 1574-0702400 } Page 1 of 2 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE 
RESTRICTIVE COVENANT FROM WILLIAM AND FRANKIE DAY 
RELATING TO THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE LAND 
USE AMENDMENT FOR COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ON THEIR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND FOLSUM ROAD; AUTHORIZING 
THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE ALL 
STEPS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE INTENT OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves has approved a 

Land Use Amendment for a 9.3 acre Property owned by William and Frankie Day, located at the 

southwest corner of Okeechobee Boulevard and Folsom Road; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the conditions of approval for the Land Use Amendment, 

William and Frankie Day have executed a Restrictive Covenant to limit the development on the 

Property to 30,000 square feet, equivalent to a floor area ratio of 0.074, provided that the FAR 

shall increase should the Town Council ever subsequently approve a commercial development 

on property fronting on Okeechobee Boulevard with a greater FAR to the same FAR as 

subsequently approved by the Town Council; and,  

WHEREAS, the counsel for the Town and the Days have agreed on the form of the 

Restrictive Covenant, attached hereto, to be recorded in order to confirm the condition of 

approval for the Land Use Amendment for the Property; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby finds it in 

the best interest of the Town to accept the Restrictive Covenant from William and Frankie Day.   

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA:  

81 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
FLORIDA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-18 

 

{00045405.1 1574-0702400 } Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 1.  The foregoing "Whereas" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution upon adoption 

hereof. 

Section 2.  The Town Council hereby accepts the Restrictive Covenant, executed by 

William and Frankie Day, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.   

 Section 3. The Town Manager and Town Attorney are authorized to ensure the 

recording of the Restrictive Covenant, and to otherwise take all steps necessary to effectuate the 

intent of this Resolution. 

 Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, Florida this 18th day of November, 2014.  

       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
ATTEST:      FLORIDA 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Mayor David Browning  
   
       ________________________________ 
       Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel    
 
       _______________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
       
       ________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:       
       ________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
______________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney 

82 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.b.  

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2014-19 

Budget Amendments – FY 2013/2014 

 

 

 

 
 

83 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.b.  

MEETING DATE: 11/18/2014 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
SUBJECT:  FY 2014 End of Year Budget Amendment  
  
1.     BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council needs to reallocate its Fiscal Year 2014 budget 
appropriation requests. 
 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with a reallocated Fiscal Year 2014 budget 
amendment. 

Annually, the Council establishes a budget appropriation and estimated revenues to meet the 
needs of its citizens.  The Council periodically amends its operating budgets for the Town in all 
of its funds (General Fund, Transportation Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, and Solid Waste 
Fund). 
 

  
2.    CURRENT ACTIVITY  
   Staff continually reviews both revenue and expenditures of the Town to monitor that revenues 

are within estimates and appropriations provide sufficient funds to match expenditures. 
  
3.    ATTACHMENTS  
Resolution Amending the Fiscal Year 2014 Annual Budget 
    
4.    FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  This amendment reduces Town-wide appropriations by $2,760,234 from $5,350,949 to 
$2,590,715.  

  
5.    RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to approve Resolution amending the Fiscal Year 2014 Annual Budget 

84 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT  FOR  THE  TOWN’S  BUDGET  FOR  THE  FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2013 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2014; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 166.241(4), Florida Statutes, the Town may amend its 

adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2014, at any 

time within a fiscal year, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Management has concluded a review of the budget and expenditures 

during the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2014, and is 

recommending amendments to the Town’s budget as set forth in Exhibit A” hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Each "WHEREAS" clause set  forth above is true and correct  and herein 
 
incorporated by this reference. 
 

Section 2. The Town’s adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2013, 
 
and ending September 30, 2014, is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 

expressly made a part hereof. 

Section 3. If any clause, section, or other part of this Resolution shall be held by any court 
 
of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid part shall be 

considered as eliminated and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

Resolution. 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

85 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



to the extent of such conflict. 
 

Section 5. This  Resolution  shall become  effective  immediately upon  its passage  and 
 
adoption. 
 

PASSED  AND  ADOPTED  BY  THE  TOWN  OF  LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES, 
FLORIDA, THIS   DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA 

 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 

 

 

Mayor David Browning 
 

 
 

  Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel 
                                                                                       
                                                                                         ________________________________________   
                                  Council Member Tom Goltzene 

 

 
 

 APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:                      Council Member Ryan Liang 
 

 
______________________________________ 

 Office of the Town Attorney                                         Council Member Jim Rockett 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

86 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A" 
 
(BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2013 

AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2014) 

87 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

001-311-100-000 AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 197,297              $16,483 $213,780
TAXES SUBTOTAL 197,297              $16,483 $213,780

001-314-100-000 ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000              51,425 $254,425
001-314-510-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    125,446              (23,758) $101,688
001-316-200-000 COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000                  $3,098 $8,098

TAXES SUBTOTAL 333,446              $30,765 $364,211

001-323-100-000 FPL FRANCHISE FEE             200,000              (17,750.00)$      $182,250
001-323-125-000 HAULER LICENSING FEE 2,000                  1,505.00$          $3,505
001-323-300-000 PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE FEE 5,050                  7,890.00$          $12,940
001-329-100-000 PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT 100                     7,434.00$          $7,534

PERMITS, FRANCHISE FEES & SPECIAL SUBTOTAL 207,150              (921.00)$           $206,229

001-335-120-000 STATE REVENUE SHARING         85,446                (5,450.00)$        $79,996
001-335-180-000 HALF CENT SALES TAX           224,014              8,057.00$          $232,071

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE SUBTOTAL 309,460              2,607.00$          $312,067

001-341-000-000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES     7,000                  (3,192.00)$        $3,808
001-343-349-000 COST RECOVERY FEES 25,000                9,397.00$          $34,397

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 32,000                6,205.00$          $38,205

001-351-100-000 COURT FINES 2,500                  (2,500.00)$        $0
001-354-100-000 CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 5,000                  4,649.00$          $9,649

JUDGEMENTS, FINES & FORFEITS SUBTOTAL 7,500                  2,149.00$          $9,649

$0
001-361-100-000 INTEREST                      5,000                  (4,842.00)$        $158
001-369-000-000 OTHER MISC INCOME             5,000                37,992.00$        $42,992

OTHER MISC. REVENUE SUBTOTAL 10,000                33,150.00$        43,150                

001-381-305-000 INTER-FUND TRANSFER IN CIP 400,000              (400,000.00)$    $0
001-385-100-000 TRANSFER FROM SANITATION FUND -                          -$                  $0
001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE $0

OTHER NON-OPERATING SOURCES TOTAL 400,000              (400,000.00)$    $0

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 1,496,853.00     (309,562.00)$    $1,187,291

MISCELLANEOUS

TAXES

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2013-14

ESTIMATED REVENUES

88 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2013-14

001-511-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 60,000                (57,850) 2,150
001-511-400-000 TRAVEL 3,000                  (2,800) 200
001-511-490-000  POSTAGE & FREIGHT - (Was legal advertising) -                          0 0
001-511-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      1,500                  (1,256) 244
001-511-499-000 OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - New Town Counsel Compensaton 30,000                0 30,000
001-511-500-000 EDUCATION AND TRAINING        1,000                  0 1,000
001-511-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               300                     150 450
001-511-520-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES            300                     0 300
001-511-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   2,435                  3,648 6,083
001-511-820-000 SPECIAL EVENTS/CONTRIBUTIONS 5,350                150 5,500

 LEGISLATIVE  TOTAL    103,885.00        (57,958.00)        45,927.00          

001-512-340-000  OTHER SERVICES 264,106              0 264,106
001-512-400-000 TRAVEL 1,000                  0 1,000
001-512-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES - (Moved to Gen Govt)   -                          0 0
001-512-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT                      1,000                  0 1,000
001-512-490-000  LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 1,000                  0 1,000
001-512-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      944                     0 944
001-512-493-000  ELECTION EXPENSE 8,010                  (6,762) 1,248
001-512-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               8,600                  4,225 12,825
001-512-521-000 LOXAHATCHEE GROVES C.E.R.T. - (Moved to Gen Govt) -                          0 0

 001-512-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES  570                   0 570
 EXECUTIVE TOTAL 285,230.00        (2,537.00)          282,693.00        

001-513-320-000 ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING 18,000                1,200 19,200
001-513-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING          4,750                  (4,750) 0
001-513-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING             1,500                  0 1,500
001-513-493-000 ELECTION EXPENSE - (Moved to Executive)              -                         0 0

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE TOTAL 24,250.00          (3,550.00)          20,700.00          

001-514-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         90,000                (592) 89,408
001-514-312-000 LEGAL -COMP PLAN -                         0 0

 LEGAL SERVICES TOTAL 90,000.00          (592.00)             89,408.00          

001-515-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    40,000                9,943 49,943
001-515-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 79,042                (1) 79,041
001-515-343-000 PLANNING & ZONING CONTRACT    20,000                (17,592) 2,408
001-515-347-000 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN            -                          0 0
001-515-349-000 COST RECOVERY EXPENDITURES 25,000                15,134 40,134
001-515-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 6,000                7,669 13,669

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND ZONING TOTAL  170,042.00 15,153.00 185,195.00

LEGAL COUNSEL

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE

EXECUTIVE

LEGISLATIVE       

 PLANNING & ZONING

APPROPRIATIONS

89 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2013-14

001-519-315-000 SPECIAL MAGISTRATE            16,000                (6,829) 9,171
001-519-354-000 CODE COMPLIANCE 41,000                (15,466) 25,534
001-519-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 5,700                  1,863 7,563
001-519-440-000 RENTALS AND LEASES            20,000                0 20,000
001-519-450-000 INSURANCE                     18,000                (2,889) 15,111
001-519-460-000 R & M BUILDINGS                     2,450                  2,097 4,547
001-519-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING -                          0 0
001-519-480-000 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES        -                          0 0
001-519-490-000 COMPUTER EQUIP SOFTWARE & HARDWARE REPAIR 2,500                  0 2,500
001-519-491-000 COMPUTER SERVICES 3,631                  2,758 6,389
001-519-494-000 INSPECTOR GENERAL OFFICE FEE 5,280                  (2,562) 2,718
001-519-820-000  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES CERT 2,000                  (950) 1,050
001-519-900-000 TRANSFER TO TRANSPORTATION FUND -                          0 0
001-519-910-000 TRANSFER TO SANITATION FUND -                          0 0
001-519-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -                          0 0
001-519-990-000 CONTINGENCY                   12,104                (12,104) 0
001-519-999-000 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND-FUND BALANCE 400,000            (217,114) 182,886

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES TOTAL 528,665.00 (251,196.00) 277,469.00

001-521-341-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-PBSO        280,281              234 280,515
001-521-342-000 CONTRACTUAL-ADDL PBSO           500                   0 500

LAW ENFORCEMENT TOTAL           280,781.00 234.00 281,015.00

001-539-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 14,000                (9,116) 4,884
001-539-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         -                          0 0

 PUBLIC WORKS  TOTAL          14,000.00 (9,116.00) 4,884.00

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,496,853.00 (309,562.00) 1,187,291.00

PUBLIC WORKS

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT

LAW ENFORCEMENT

90 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

101-312-410-000 FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 249,245         (2,028)                   247,217         
101-312-420-000 SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,326         629                       117,955         
101-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                    -                           -                    
001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE (6 CT) 856,191       (822,795)              33,396          

Total Revenue 1,222,762    (824,194)              398,568        

101-541-467-000 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS - 6 c 6,000             (1,544)                   4,456             
101-541-468-000 TOWN ROADS MAINT. - 6 c 93,245           (39,775)                 53,470           
101-541-469-000 ROAD MAINTENANCE DISTRICT - 6 c 150,000         -                           150,000         
101-541-631-000 ROAD AND STREETS - NEW CONSTRUCTION - 5 -                    -                           -                    
101-541-632-000 SPECIAL PROJECTS -                    -                           
101-541-633-000 22nd ROAD DITCH           -                    -                           -                    
101-541-634-000 148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                    -                           -                    
101-541-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECT 973,517         (973,517)               190,642         
101-541-990-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (5 CT) -                    
101-541-996-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (6 CT) -                    -                           -                    

Total Expenditure 1,222,762      (1,014,836)            398,568         

 APPROPRIATIONS

Transportation Fund
Fiscal Year 2013-14

ESTIMATED REVENUES

91 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

305-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                       -                       
305-363-991-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND 973,517            190,642            
305-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 1,229,047         400,000            

Total Revenue 2,202,564         590,642            

305-519-600-000 DEVELOP TOWN HALL ALTERNATIVES -                       -                       
305-541-610-000 SURVEYING TOWN ROADS 100,000            9,653                
305-541-620-000 OGEM Collecting Canal Road 943,630            -                       
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light 250,000            6,000                
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects 100,000            141,836            
305-541-650-000 Trails 80,000              4,260                
305-541-652-000 D Road to Southern Boulevard 300,000            -                       
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934              28,893              
305-581-001-000 Inter-fund Transfer Out Gen. Fund 400,000            400,000            

Total Expenditure 2,202,564         590,642            

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Fiscal Year 2013-14

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

92 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

405-325-205-000 SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS (1,260 units) 432,873        (8,965)               423,908       
405-325-206-000 DISCOUNT FEES (12,103)         (1,624)               (13,727)        
405-343-120-000 SWA RECYCLING INCOME 8,000            (3,974)               4,026           
405-361-100-000 INTEREST -                7                       7                  
405-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                   -                        -                   

Total Revenue 428,770        (14,556)             414,214       

405-534-345-000 CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT         7,010            16,603              23,613         
405-534-346-000 PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,460            (718)                  3,742           
405-534-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT 500               (500)                  -                   
405-534-434-000 SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 415,800        (29,641)             386,159       
405-534-436-000 OTHER SANITATION SERVICES -                   -                        -                   
405-534-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING 1,000            (300)                  700              
405-534-595-000 TOLG MANAGEMENT FEES -                   -                        -                   

Total Expenditure 428,770        (14,556)             414,214       

Solid Waste Fund
Fiscal Year 2013-14

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

93 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Fund #

001 GENERAL FUND 1,496,853             (309,562)             1,187,291           
101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 1,222,762             (824,194)             398,568              
305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 2,202,564             590,642               590,642              
405 SOLID WASTE FUND 428,770                (14,556)               414,214              

Total Estimated Revnue 5,350,949             (557,670)             2,590,715           

001 GENERAL FUND 1,496,853             (309,562)             1,187,291           
101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 1,222,762             (1,014,836)          398,568              
305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 2,202,564             590,642               590,642              
405 SOLID WASTE FUND 428,770                (14,556)               414,214              

Total Appropriations 5,350,949             (748,312)             2,590,715           

All Funds
Fiscal Year 2013-14

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

94 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a.  

Managers’ Report 

Agenda Item Report (AIR) 

95 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO.8.a. 

MEETING DATE: 11/18/2014 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
SUBJECT:  Manager Update  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 
 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 

At the Council meeting of October 7, 2014, it was noted that items in this category be provided 
as part of a written report. 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

  
• Trails:  Staff will issue the notice to proceed in the near future for Project No: 13-1020; 

Project Title: 6th Court North Equestrian Trail Improvements. 
o Town Council approved the quote from the WBI base bid of $23,600. 
o LGWCD must provide the Town an easement that would provide the Town site 

control before construction begins for equestrian trails..  
• Road Clearance: Staff authorized work on Project Title:  Hedging 161st Terrace North, 

22nd Road North, Gruber Lane to C & C Loader Services in the amount of $6,200. 
o Work is complete. 

• Trails: At the IGC meeting of November 7th, the IGC discussed the proposed ILA for 
the Horse Trails, wherein Supervisor Ryan and Chair DeMarois agreed with the concept 
the horse trail easements and maintenance easements be under recorded under a dual 
basis.  

o ILA approved by the LGWCD on November 10th did not incorporate dual 
easement and equitable responsibility that was contained in the draft ILA 
prepared by Town Attorney and Staff and provided to District previously. 

o On November 13th, Staff resubmitted to the District  the ILA draft prepared by 
the Town for reconsideration.   

• LGWCD:  At the IGC meeting of November 7th, the new business item proffered by 
Councilman Jarriel to begin discussions on making the LGWCD a dependent entity of 
the Town of Loxahatchee Groves was recommended for removal by Councilman Jarriel 
from the agenda. 

• Roads:  At the IGC meeting of November 7th, the committee reviewed a policy 
developed for the LGWCD to dispose of fill extracted by dredging canals.  In essence 

96 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

susan E
Typewritten Text



the fill will have priority use by the LGWCD, the Town, and then priority bid local 
residents followed by non-local entities, and finally, provided to local residents as is, and 
where is. 

• Building:  Staff and Town Attorney have discussed the matter with Vinceremos 
Therapeutic Riding Center staff and provided specific assistance in their efforts to 
include additional facilities on their property.  Presently, no additional assistance is 
required. 

• Building:  Update to work related to the Chamber of Commerce building is included in 
the November 18, 2014 agenda.  

• Roads:  Negotiations continue for B Road improvements which will go from Southern 
Boulevard to Okeechobee Boulevard.  Staff is working toward holding the second 
hearing on an ordinance in November to provide appropriate zoning classification to the 
involved parcels.  This item is tentatively moving forward for the December 2, 2014 
Council Meeting. 

• Police Services:  Report submitted by David Combs, Lieutenant, PBC Sheriff 
 

 
  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 Palm Beach County Sheriff Reports 
    
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Not applicable.  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to receive and file report.  

97 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.b.  

Managers’ Report 

PBSO Report – October 2014 

98 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, III Budget Analyst  

  
SUBJECT:  Palm Beach County Sheriff’s report 
  
1.BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  Maintain awareness of Palm Beach County Sheriff’s major 
incidents within town limits 

Problem Solution:   Provide for monthly and annual reports regarding activity 

At the Council meeting of October 7, 2014, it was noted that items in this category be 
provided as part of a written report. 
 

  
2.CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  

 During the month, District 15 deputies handled (307) calls for service.  39% of 
calls for service were self-generated  
 

 There was one (1) robbery and three (3) thefts reported last month.  
 

  
3.ATTACHMENTS  
 District 15 Loxahatchee Groves Monthly Report. Oct 2014 
  
4.FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  No new Fiscal Impact. 
  
5.RECOMMENDED ACTION 
  
  No Action Required, report is simply informational.  

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO.8.b.  

MEETING DATE: 11/18/2014 

 

99 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                    

District 15 Loxahatchee Groves 

Monthly Report:  October, 2014 
 
 
Calls for Service (self-generated) Monthly 
Business/Residence Checks 74 
Traffic Stops 47 
Total 121 
 
Summary: During the month, D15 deputies handled (307) calls for service.  39% of calls for 
service were self-generated.  
 
Part I Crimes Case #’s  Monthly 
Murder 0 
Sexual Assault 0 
Robbery 1 
Aggravated Assault 0 
Burglary 0 
Theft 3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 0 
Arson 0 
Total 4 
   
Summary:  There was one (1) robbery and three (3) thefts reported last month.  The robbery 

case is 14-132695 10/18/14 @ 5:42a.m. 14555 Southern Blvd., Robbery, 
Unknown B/M suspect; the victim was in “Boonies” playing pool.  He displayed a 
$100 bill.  The suspect forcibly took the money. The victim, however, signed a 
refusal to prosecute form.  This case was exceptionally cleared.  

 

100 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Consideration of Acquisition of Central Palm Beach County 
Chamber of Commerce Building 

101 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO.9.a. 

MEETING DATE: 11/18/2014 

 
PREPARED BY: William F. Underwood, III Budget Analyst 

 
SUBJECT:  Acquisition of Palms West Chamber of Commerce  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  Town Council requests a Cost Benefit Analysis and other tasks to be 
performed regarding potential acquisition.  

Problem Solution:   At the Town Council meeting on September 2, 2014, the Council 
instructed that staff have two appraisals performed and an inspection of the building to assure 
compliance with applicable building codes.  

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

• Data Collection:  Staff has received Chamber building expenses from Wayne Burns, 
Chamber Executive Director. 

o Of the expenses provided, Staff used four new expenses in this analysis 
 Water 
 Electric 
 Landscaping 
 Safety/Fire inspections 

o All expenses have been itemized, for a projected 30-year term at a 5% rate of 
inflation which was used to determine the cost effectiveness of an outright 
purchase to a straight lease option, at the current Town office location. 

• Appraisals 
o Effective October 21, 2014, Craig Butterfield, State Certified General Real Estate 

Appraiser #RZ1063, established a building value of $445,000 as shown on page iii 
of the attached report. 

o Effective October 1, 2014, Pedro Gomez of Commercial Appraisals & Consulting, 
Inc. established a building value of $518,824 as can be seen on page 4 of the 
attached report. 

• Building Inspection 
o Inspection completed by Tew & Taylor. 

 
  
 
  

102 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3.  ATTACHMENTS  
• Real Estate Appraisal of a Commercial Building… by Craig Butterfield #RZ1063 
• A Restricted Use Appraisal Report…by Pedro Gomez #RZ0130 
• Cost Budget Analysis 
• Town of Loxahatchee Groves Monthly Expenditure 
• Central Palm Beach Chamber of Commerce Monthly Expenditure  
• Comcast Monthly Receipt of payment  
• Building Inspection Report … Tew & Taylor 

    
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  

Three scenarios are provided in this analysis.  
Option 1) Cost of Lease option at current location over 30 years with 5% inflation rate and a 
discounted rate of 2%.  
Option 2) Cost of Purchase option over 30 years with a 5 % inflation rate and a discounted rate of 
2%.  
Option  3) Cost of the Lease option at current location for next 30 years if no inflation occurs and 
no discounted rate.  

o The Cost Budget Analysis reads.  
 Column “Year” refers to what year we are accounting for in this 30 year projection. 
 Column “5% CIP” refers to 5% inflation applied to each year’s prior projected 

expense 
 Column “Cost P/M” refers to the cost of each month during that particular year 
  Column “P/Y” refers to the price accumulation by the completion of a Year 
 Column “Purchasing” refers to cost of the Palms West Chamber Building projected 

for next 30 years 
 Column “P/M 0%” refers to cost of lease per month if absolutely no changes in the 

rental cost or inflation for utilities occurs over the next 30 years 
 Column “Cost of rent P/Y” refers to cost of lease per year if absolutely no changes 

in the rental cost or inflation for utilities occurs over the next 30 years 
• Total at the bottom reflects the cost of entire program after 30 years 
• NPV breaks all the costs down to the present day value of all the identified 

expenses.  
o For itemized expenditures, per each option please see attachment. Please be advised, 

although Internet and telephone are included on the Purchase option, they are not included 
in the Lease option and have been added into the cost of the Lease. 
 Please See attached Comcast bill 

o In case the Yee Corporation decides not to raise our rent for the next 30 years, please see 
side Analysis with regards to effect the Comparison if  0% inflation were to occur.  
The Gross cost and Net Present Value of the options are: 
 
 
 
 
 

103 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Cost Of Option over next 30 years Gross Cost NPV 
Option 1-Lease at current location 
w/ inflation $1,619,031.87 $1,141,176.09 
Option 2-Purchase of  Chamber Bldg $582,211.55 $543,281.21 
Option 3-Lease at current location 
w/o inflation $753,367.80 $753,367.80 

  
• Using the NPV calculation, the town could save approximately $597,894.88 over the next 30 

years comparing Option 1 to Option 2, and $171,156.25 comparing Option 2 to Option 3. 

5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
• The Analysis reflects that an outright purchase of the Chamber building, Option 2, is the 

most cost effective solution. Staff is recommending the Town Council only consider the 
outright purchase option for the Palms West Chamber. 

o Motion: Receive and File Report 
  
  
 

104 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



105 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



107 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



108 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



109 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



110 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



112 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



113 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



114 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



115 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Year 5% CIP Cost P/M Cost P/Y Purchasing Cost P/M 0% Cost of rent P/Y

1 2,164.85$  $25,978.20 $481,573.42 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
2 $108.24 $2,273.09 $27,277.11 $1,652.09 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
3 $113.65 $2,386.75 $28,640.97 $1,734.70 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
4 $119.34 $2,506.08 $30,073.01 $1,821.43 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
5 $125.30 $2,631.39 $31,576.66 $1,912.50 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
6 $131.57 $2,762.96 $33,155.50 $2,008.13 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
7 $138.15 $2,901.11 $34,813.27 $2,108.53 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
8 $145.06 $3,046.16 $36,553.94 $2,213.96 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         

10 $152.31 $3,198.47 $38,381.63 $2,440.89 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
11 $159.92 $3,358.39 $40,300.71 $2,562.94 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
12 $167.92 $3,526.31 $42,315.75 $2,691.08 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
13 $176.32 $3,702.63 $44,431.54 $2,825.64 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
14 $185.13 $3,887.76 $46,653.11 $2,966.92 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
15 $194.39 $4,082.15 $48,985.77 $3,115.26 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
16 $204.11 $4,286.25 $51,435.06 $3,271.03 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
17 $214.31 $4,500.57 $54,006.81 $3,434.58 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
18 $225.03 $4,725.60 $56,707.15 $3,606.31 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
19 $236.28 $4,961.88 $59,542.51 $3,786.62 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
20 $248.09 $5,209.97 $62,519.64 $3,975.95 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
21 $260.50 $5,470.47 $65,645.62 $4,174.75 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
22 $273.52 $5,743.99 $68,927.90 $4,383.49 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
23 $287.20 $6,031.19 $72,374.29 $4,602.66 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
24 $301.56 $6,332.75 $75,993.01 $4,832.80 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
25 $316.64 $6,649.39 $79,792.66 $5,074.44 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
26 $332.47 $6,981.86 $83,782.29 $5,328.16 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
27 $349.09 $7,330.95 $87,971.41 $5,594.57 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
28 $366.55 $7,697.50 $92,369.98 $5,874.29 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         
29 $384.87 $8,082.37 $96,988.48 $6,168.01 $     2,164.85  25,978.20$         
30 $404.12 $8,486.49 $101,837.90 $6,476.41 2,164.85$     25,978.20$         

Total $1,619,031.87 $582,211.55 $753,367.80

NPV $1,141,176.09 $543,281.21 $753,367.80

Cost Budget Analysis 

116 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



118 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



119 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



120 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



121 of 121    TC Agenda Packet 11/18/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text

Loxg finance
Typewritten Text


	AGENDA
	2.a. Consent Agenda - Minutes
	6.a.& 6.b. - Ordinance No's 2014-06 & 2014-07 - Day Property
	7.a. Resolution No. 2014-18 - Day Restrictive Covenances
	7.b. Resolution No. 2014-19 - Budget Amendments FY 2014
	8.a. Managers Report
	8.b. Managers Report PBSC Oct 2014 Report
	9.a. Old Business - Chamber of Commerce Building



